
 

 

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Amy Dredge 
 (Tel: 01443 863100   Email: dredga@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Date: 18th September 2020 

 
 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
A meeting of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee will be held via Microsoft Teams on Thursday, 
24th September, 2020 at 5.30 pm to consider the matters contained in the following agenda.  
Councillors and the public wishing to speak on any item can do so by making a request to the Chair.  
You are also welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, both these requests require a minimum notice 
period of 3 working days. 
 

This meeting will be recorded and made available to view via the Council’s website, except for 
discussions involving confidential or exempt items.  Therefore the images/audio of those individuals 

speaking will be publicly available to all via the recording on the Council website at 
www.caerphilly.gov.uk 

 

 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Pages 
  

 
 

1  To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/


 
2  Declarations of Interest.  

 
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal 
and/or prejudicial interest (s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for 
both Councillors and Officers. 

 
To approve and sign the following minutes: -  
 
3  Social Services Scrutiny Committee held on the 4th February 2020.  

1 - 8 
 

4  Consideration of any matter referred to this Committee in accordance with the call-in procedure.  
 

 
5  Social Services  Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.  

9 - 24 
 

 To receive and consider the following Scrutiny reports: - 
 
6  My Support Team (MyST) - Presentation.  

 
 

7  Establishment of an additional Residential Children's Home within the County Borough.  
25 - 30 

 
 
Circulation: 
Councillors: A. Angel, J. Bevan, C. Bezzina (Vice Chair), L.J. Binding (Chair), D. Cushing, K. Etheridge, 
M. Evans, A. Gair, Ms J. Gale, D.C. Harse, V. James, L. Jeremiah, Mrs A. Leonard, S. Skivens, 
C. Thomas and W. Williams 
 
Users and Carers: Mr C. Luke and Michelle Jones 
 
Aneurin Bevan Health Board: A. Gough (ABUHB) 
 
And Appropriate Officers 
 
HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION 

Those individuals that attend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes of that meeting, 
sometimes this will include their place of employment or business and opinions expressed.  Minutes of Meetings including details 
of speakers will be publicly available to all via the Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussions involving 
confidential or exempt items. 
You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the rights of access to information we hold about you and 
the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your information is being processed. 
For further information on how we process your information and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy 
Notice on our website http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy or contact Legal Services by email 

griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028. 

 
 

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk


 

 
 
 
 

 
SOCIAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, TREDOMEN, 
YSTRAD MYNACH ON TUESDAY, 4TH FEBRUARY 2020 AT 5.30 P.M. 

 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Councillor L. Binding - Chair 

Councillor J. Bevan - Vice Chair  
 

Councillors: 
 

A. Angel, M. Evans, J. Gale, D.C. Harse, L. Jeremiah, Mrs A. Leonard, S. Skivens, C. Thomas 
and W. Williams. 
 
Cabinet Member: C. Cuss (Social Care and Wellbeing).  

 
Together with: 

 
D. Street (Corporate Director - Social Services and Housing), J. Williams (Assistant Director -
Adult Services), G. Jenkins (Assistant Director - Children’s Services), M. Jones (Interim 
Financial Services Manager), C. Forbes-Thompson (Scrutiny Manager) and A. Dredge 
(Committee Services Officer). 
 
Councillor K. Etheridge (Non Social Services Scrutiny Committee Member). 
 

 Users and Carers – Mrs M. Jones and Mr C. Luke.  
 
 Also Present – Dr S. Aitken, Executive Director of Public Health (ABUHB).  
 
 

1.    WELCOME  
 
 The Chair welcomed Councillor W. Williams to his first meeting of the Social Services Scrutiny 

Committee.   
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors C. Bezzina, D. Cushing, A. Gair, 

V. James and B. Owen.  
 
  

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of 
the meeting.  

  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



4. MINUTES – 3RD DECEMBER 2019  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Social Services Scrutiny 
Committee held on 3rd December 2019 (minute nos. 1 -7) be approved and signed 
as a correct record.   

 
 
5. CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALL-IN PROCEDURE 
 
 There had been no matters referred to the Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the call-in 

procedure. 
 
 
6. SOCIAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
 The Scrutiny Manager introduced the report that informed the Committee of its Forward Work 

Programme planned for the period February to April 2020.  Members were asked to consider 
the work programme and to make any amendments or request additional agenda items to be 
included for future meetings.  

 
Members noted that Aneurin Bevan University Health Board (ABUHB) will be delivering a 
presentation at the next meeting on the 17th March.  It was explained that the Youth Forum 
who had previously delivered their Priority Issues to the Scrutiny Committee will be invited to 
observe that meeting for them to see how the Committee has passed on the issues raised.  
The Committee were asked to send questions addressed to ABUHB to the Scrutiny Team in 
advance of the meeting.     

 
 Following consideration and discussion, Members unanimously agreed that the Forward Work 

Programme appended to the report be published to the Council’s website. 
             
 
 REPORTS OF OFFICERS  
 

 Consideration was given to the following reports. 
 
 

7. BUILDING A HEALTHIER WALES (PRESENTATION BY ANEURIN BEVAN UNIVERSITY 
HEALTH BOARD)   

 
Dr S. Aitken delivered a presentation in relation to Building a Healthier Gwent and explained 
that the public sector has a crucial role to play in what ABUHB are aiming for.  She referred to 
the wellbeing goals set out in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and 
gave examples how services will be delivered in respect of the Sustainable Development 
Principle.  Comparisons were made in respect of life expectancy and the percentage of life 
spent in ‘good health’ in the least and most deprived areas in Wales.  Percentages were 
provided for the 3 major illnesses that are related to risk factors namely, cardiovascular 
diseases, cancers and chronic respiratory diseases.    

 
The results of the Involvement Programme that was held across the 5 Local Authorities in 
Gwent were summarised.  This included 50 face to face engagement events with 
professionals, the public and seldom heard groups that also included a survey being 
undertaken.  The ambition in moving forward is that by 2030, the places where we live, work, 
learn and play make it easier for people in all our communities to live more of their lives in 
good health.  Emphasis was placed on the need for healthy homes, places and spaces, 
healthy communities and promoting health services.  A result of the survey was that the top 
priority and the highest percentage of both professional and public responses would be to 
prevent mental health illness.  In concluding, Dr Aitken advised that the themes from the 

Page 2



involvement programme have been endorsed by the Gwent Regional Partnership Board, G10 
and the 5 Local Authorities across Gwent.  The G10 public sector leadership group has asked 
the Director of Public Health to lead the development of a Healthier Gwent Delivery Plan and 
the Area Planning Board for Substance Misuse is reviewing its alignment to the strategic 
partnership structure in Gwent. 
 
A member sought clarification in respect of the ABUHB report due to be completed by 2021 
and if this will be made publically available.  It was explained that the report will be presented 
to the Regional Partnership Board (RPB) in the first instance and then could be presented to 
the Scrutiny Committee.  The Director suggested the report could be widely distributed in draft 
form.  Dr Aitken added that the original report could be sent to Members which contains the 
Delivery Plan.  In terms of information available, the Cabinet Member advised that a Members 
Seminar had been recently provided by ABUHB and unfortunately this had been poorly 
attended.  Dr Aitken advised that there are lots of resources going into communities which 
should then be able to identify gaps in moving forward and the Programme is about 
connecting people and developing the Community Network. 
 
The Chair, in summing up advised that in response to the question ‘what role do you think 
your organisation could play’ that progress and actions can be monitored via the Council’s 
wellbeing objectives and information sharing. 
 
The Chair thanked Dr Aitken for delivering the presentation and responding to questions 
raised during the course of the debate.   

  
 
8. BUDGET MONITORING REPORT (MONTH 9) 
 
 The report provided Members with the projected revenue expenditure for the Social Services 

Directorate for the 2019/20 financial year and the progress made against the savings targets 
built in to the 2019/20 revenue budget for the Directorate.  The report identifies the reasons 
behind a projected underspend of £976k for Social Services in 2019/20, despite an increase 
to 24 independent residential placements for children from the 17 placements that were 
funded at the beginning of the financial year.  It also identifies the progress that has been 
made to date towards achieving the £2.261million savings target that was included in the 
Social Services budget for 2019/20. 

 
 The Interim Financial Services Manager referred to paragraph 5.2 in the report which sets out  

the current projected overspend of £951k within the Children’s Services Division.  There is a 
potential underspend of £261k in respect of management, fieldwork and administrative posts 
within the Children’s Services Division and this was reported to Members in October 2019. 
This potential underspend has since increased to £321k, largely as a result of temporary 
vacancies resulting from secondments into the Integrated Care Fund (ICF) grant aided posts.  
A member queried if there had been any impact on front-line services during this time.  
Officers advised that ICF has been utilised to expand existing services so the impact has 
been managed.  It was explained that it is important that the right people are employed to 
meet the needs and challenges of the Service.  Difficulties are sometimes encountered with 
short-term grant funded schemes and filling posts and there is an occasional need to rely on 
agency staff as a consequence of this.   

 
Members noted that the Adult Services Division is currently projected to underspend its 
budget by £1,869k.  Officers explained that it is difficult to anticipate income generated and an 
example was provided in relation to self-funding within Care Homes.  It was also noted that 
this is Month 9 in terms of the budget projection and the impact of the difficult and challenging 
winter pressures of December and January will be reported in the next budget monitoring 
report.  In responding to Members’ questions, Officers advised that the ‘drop off’ in adult care  
home placements is due to a number of reasons, including more people staying at home and 
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board funding temporary beds using winter pressures 
funding.  Problems have been identified in domiciliary care and it was explained that recruiting 

Page 3



in this area is a national problem.  The Department are working with the Independent Sector, 
other Local Authorities and ‘We Care’ campaign which will be televising recruitment in March 
2020.  This will highlight ‘real people who do the job’ with an academy style approach across 
Health and Social Care training which is cross transferrable.  Officers are also working with 
Coleg Gwent and looking at potential incentives/placements/initiatives in moving forward.  
 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed. 
  

  RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Report: 
 

(i) the projected underspend of £976k against the Social Services budget for 
2019/20, inclusive of transport costs, be noted; 
 

(ii) the progress made to date towards delivering the £2.261million savings target 
that was included in the Social Services budget for 2019/20, be noted. 

 
 
9. REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS BOARDS - UPDATE 
 
 The report provided Members with the role and functions of the Regional Partnership Boards 

(RPB’s) that were introduced as part of the implementation of the Social Services and 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWBA).  It sets out the increasing significance of the RPB’s in 
the eyes of Welsh Government (WG) and how they are becoming key drivers in delivering 
“seamless services” in Health and Social Care.   
 
The Committee were reminded that Part 9 of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 
2014 required local authorities and Health Boards to establish RPB’s.  These were 
established on Health Board footprints with consequently seven Boards being created. The 
RPB for this area is titled the Gwent Regional Partnership Board.  Since their inception in 
2016 the RPB have become increasingly influential in developing integrated health and social 
care services across the region.  The Board has also been recipient of significant amounts of 
grant funding from WG to support and develop integrated services.  This report outlines the 
purpose of the Board, its work programme and achievements to date as well as referencing 
some of the ongoing challenges for Caerphilly CBC as a member of the Gwent RPB.  
 
The Scrutiny Committee were referred to paragraph 5.3 in the report which sets out the 
provisions of the Act which RPB’s were required to prioritise in relation to the integration of 
services.  The Assistant Directors for both Children’s and Adult Services provided examples of 
the benefits which Caerphilly has received through funding harnessed from the RPB.  
Members discussed the content of the report and expressed their concerns in that they had 
not been aware of the funding elements of the services and felt that as a Scrutiny Committee, 
there had been a democratic shortfall in that regard.  Members discussed the membership of 
the RPB and questioned if public meetings are held.  It was noted that the majority of the 
documents that support the Board can be found on the Gwent RPB website 
www.gwentrpb.wales and minutes to the meetings held should also be publicly available.  A 
Member queried if the cessation of grant funding would impact on the Corporate Plan 2018-
2023.  Officers explained that there are a series of Wellbeing Objectives that are assisted by 
grant funding and should this cease, funding would have to be found elsewhere, in moving 
forward.   
 

 The Chair gave permission for Councillor K. Etheridge to address the Committee to raise a 
number of questions and concerns in relation to this item.  These included information on the 
priorities, timescales, delivery, action plans, key objectives and cost going forward in relation 
to Caerphilly CBC.  Reference was also made to whether the Council believes Gwent RPB is 
working effectively and if funding received from Welsh Government (WG) can be broken down 
into areas.  He also queried if the RPB has made representations to WG stating that some of 

Page 4

http://www.gwentrpb.wales/


their requests are unreasonable in terms of short notice turn around for funding bids.  In 
concluding, he requested the RPB minutes in moving forward, be attached to the Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting agenda.  The Chair assured Councillor Etheridge that the Scrutiny 
Committee would be making a number of recommendations when the debate was concluded.   

  
Officers explained that there are often difficulties encountered with limited turnaround times 
(sometimes less than a week) for grant funding bids to be submitted.  The Transformation 
Fund has meant more resource to RPB, alongside more funding through ICF. It means that 
the RPB has a busy and demanding agenda, with more interest from national and regional 
organisations wanting to ‘link up’ with the RPB.  The RPB has had to look at different ways of 
working as the ‘regional approach’ is here to stay.   
 
The challenges for the RPB in going forward were summarised which include an increased 
level of funding from Welsh Government which comes to RPB’s to determine best use, and 
often this funding is short term in nature – for one or two years.  This is against a backdrop of 
continued pressure on local authority budgets and cuts having to be made to front line 
services.  The increasing rate of requests from WG for information and input to national 
events, workshops and meetings also places demand on RPB resources – and this is a 
process that will need careful management going forward.  So, there are still significant 
challenges to be faced, with the knowledge that demands will continue to increase. 

 
 The Chair thanked the Officers for presenting the report and responding to questions during 

the course of the debate. 
 

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed.    
 

  RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Report: 
 

(i) the contents of the report be noted; 
 

(ii) the Social Services Scrutiny Committee will write to the Welsh Government 
Minister for Health and Social Services with their concerns regarding the lack of 
scrutiny arrangements in respect of Regional Partnership Boards in order to 
seek his views on what options are possible and a copy of the letter will be sent 
to the other Gwent Local Authorities; 

 
(iii) the Social Services Scrutiny Committee will write to the other Gwent Local 

Authorities to explore possible options for joint scrutiny of Regional Partnership 
Boards; 

 
(iv) the Social Services Scrutiny Committee to receive quarterly reports on the 

Regional Partnership Board; 

 
(v) all future reports to Social Services Scrutiny Committee to identify if any 

financial elements are funded through Regional Partnership Board grants and 
the risks attached to future service provision.  

 
 

10. REBALANCING OF THE SOCIAL CARE MARKET 
 
The report informed Members of the work currently being undertaken between Local 
Authorities (LA’s) and Welsh Government (WG) with a view to determining if the balance in 
the social care market between Local Authority directly provided services, services 
commissioned from the Independent Sector and services from the Third Sector is currently fit 
for purpose. 

 

Page 5



Members were advised that as part of his manifesto pledge in 2018, the First Minister stated 
his intentions to “Re-energise Efforts to create cooperative suppliers of social care services in 
Wales, rebalancing the sector, and bring such services back closer to the public realm.”  The 
report explains the current position in Caerphilly CBC with regard to the current balance of the 
social care market and the work undertaken to date alongside WG Officials and Colleagues at 
the Association of Directors of Social Services Cymru (ADSSC).  The report also seeks 
Members views on the issue of the balance within the market for social care services and the 
current position within Caerphilly CBC. 
 
The Scrutiny Committee discussed the report and noted that the Care Sector is under 
significant pressure and expressed their concerns as to the loss of staff due to low pay and 
being under more and more pressure at work.  Members discussed the current position in 
relation to Domiciliary Care and noted that the number of beds in Residential Care for Older 
People in-house is 19% as opposed to 81% external.  Members would like to see an increase 
in LA provision and the remainder shared between external providers.  The Chair added that 
the Sector does need rebalancing and he would like to see the external providers covering 
40% of the market and acknowledged that the position must be sustainable.     
 
Officers advised that they understand the intent of Welsh Government and the direction in 
which they wish to go and WG are about to send out an update as to their progress made in 
this area.  Members can then be advised of the position.   
 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation 
in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.  
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
(i) the work being done alongside Welsh Government with regard to the need for   

rebalancing of the social care market, be noted; 
 

(i) Members comments regarding the issue of the balance within the market for 
social care services and the current position within Caerphilly CBC are 
contained therein.   
 

 
11. SOCIAL SERVICES CO-OPTED MEMBER VACANCY 
 

The Committee were informed that Mrs Jill Lawton, Co-opted Member has resigned her 
position on the Social Services Scrutiny Committee.  Members were asked to consider if there 
is a need to fill the vacancy in accordance with the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 
Statutory Guidance.  The process for recruitment of the appointment of Scrutiny Committee 
Co-opted Members was agreed by Council in May 2017.  It was explained that should the 
Committee agree that the position be filled, then Members would need to approve the 
establishment of an Appointments Sub-Committee.   
 
Members considered the report and felt that Co-opted Members provide a valuable 
contribution to the Scrutiny Committee and supported the post being filled.  A Member queried 
what requirements the Sub-Committee would be looking for in candidates.  The Officer 
advised that skills and knowledge were considered previously and the Sub-Committee would 
decide if the candidates are suitably qualified and will short-list for interview.  Following the 
interviews the sub-committee will make a recommendation to Social Services Scrutiny 
Committee for consideration.         
 
Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed.  

 
   

Page 6



 
  RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Report: 
 

(i) the Social Services Scrutiny Committee agree to recruit to fill the Co-
Opted Member vacancy; 
 

(ii) Councillors L. Binding (Chair), J. Bevan (Vice-Chair) and D. Harse be 
appointed to sit on the Appointments Sub-Committee. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 7.10pm. 
 
 Approved as a correct record, subject to any amendments agreed and recorded in the 

minutes of the meeting held on 24th September 2020.  
 

__________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 
 

SOCIAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 24TH SEPTEMBER 2020 
 

SUBJECT: SOCIAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME 

 

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES & HOUSING 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To report the Social Services Committee Forward Work Programme. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Forward Work Programmes are essential to ensure that Scrutiny Committee agendas reflect 

the strategic issues facing the Council and other priorities raised by Members, the public or 
stakeholders. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Members consider any changes and agree the final forward work programme prior to 

publication. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To improve the operation of scrutiny. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The Social Services Scrutiny Committee forward work programme includes all reports that 

were identified and discussed at the Scrutiny Leadership Group meeting on Thursday 20 
August, 2020.  The work programme outlines the reports planned for the period September 
2020 to December 2020. 

 
5.2 The forward work programme is made up of reports identified by officers and members.  

Members are asked to consider the work programme alongside the cabinet work programme 
and suggest any changes before it is published on the council website.  Scrutiny committee 
will review this work programme at every meeting going forward alongside any changes to the 
cabinet work programme or report requests. 

 
5.3 The Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 

1.  The Cabinet Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2. A copy of the prioritisation 
flowchart is attached at appendix 3 to assist the scrutiny committee to determine what items 
should be added to the forward work programme. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



5.4 Conclusion 
 
 The work programme is for consideration and amendment by the scrutiny committee prior to 

publication on the council website. 
 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 No assumptions are necessary.   
 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 The operation of scrutiny is required by the Local Government Act 2000. The Local 

Government (Wales) Measure 2011 and subsequent Statutory Guidance include 
requirements to publicise the work of scrutiny committees. The operation of scrutiny 
committee forward work programmes was agreed following decisions by Council in October 
2013 and October 2015.   

 
7.2 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   
 
 Scrutiny Committee forward work programmes contributes towards and impacts upon the 

Corporate Well-being Objectives by ensuring that the Executive is held to account for its 
Corporate Objectives, which are:     

 
 Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 

 
 Objective 2 - Enabling employment 

 
 Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the 

county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s well-being 
 

 Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that increases 
opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on the environment 
 

 Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with 
the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 
 

 Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being 
 
  
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 The Forward Work Programmes contribute to the following Well-being Goals within the Well-

being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2016 by ensuring there is an effective scrutiny 
function and that council policies are scrutinised against the following goals: 

 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language 

 A globally responsible Wales 
 
  

Page 10



9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been included in this report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 The Local Government Act 2000, The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011. 
 
 
 
Author: Mark Jacques, Scrutiny Officer 
 
Consultees: Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/ Monitoring Officer 
 Lisa Lane, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer, Legal 

Services 
        Councillor Lyndon Binding, Chair of Social Services Scrutiny Committee 
        Councillor John Bevan, Vice Chair of Social Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 
Appendix 2 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 
Appendix 3 Forward Work Programme Prioritisation Flowchart 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

 

Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 24th September 2020  
Subject 

 
Purpose  Key Issues  Witnesses  

Multi-Disciplinary 
Intervention Support Team 
 

  Dave Street 

Development of a new 
residential Children’s Home 

To advise Scrutiny Committee of the 
plans to utilise ICF Capital Grant 
allocation and Service Specific 
Reserves to develop an additional 
four bedded residential Children’s 
Home within Caerphilly County 
Borough Council. 

 Gareth Jenkins 

    

    

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 13



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

 
 
 

Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 20th October 2020  
Subject 

 
Purpose  Key Issues  Witnesses  

Care Inspectorate Wales 
(CIW) Inspection Feedback 
(includes Adult Safeguarding 
Arrangements) 
 
 

  Dave Street 

Caerphilly Cares   Dave Street 
Sue Richards 

    

    

 
 
 

P
age 14



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

 
 

Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 1st December 2020  
Subject 

 
Purpose  Key Issues  Witnesses  

New Respite Facility 
 
 
 

  Dave Street 
 

    

    
 

 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 15



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: Date to be Confirmed 
Subject 

 
Purpose  Key Issues  Witnesses  

Task & Finish Group – 
Charging for non-residential 
care 
 
 

   

ABUHB    

Regional Partnership Activity    

    

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 16



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

 

Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 24th September 2020 Information Items 
Subject 

 
Purpose  Key Issues  Witnesses  

Budget Monitoring Report 
(Month 3) 

  Mike Jones, Interim Financial 
Services Manager 

2020/21 Social Services 
Revenue Budget 

 The report provides details of the 2020/21 
revenue budget for service areas within Social 
Services and outlines the reasons for 
movements in the revenue budget since 
2019/20. 

Mike Jones, Interim Financial 
Services Manager 

Social Services Grants 
2020/21 

 The report provides details of current 2020/21 
grant funding for the Directorate of Social 
Services. During the financial year further grants 
are often made available subject to new funding 
being identified and successful outcomes for 
bids. 

Mike Jones, Interim Financial 
Services Manager 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 17



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

 
 

Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 20th October 2020 Information Items 
Subject 

 
Purpose  Key Issues  Witnesses  

 
 

   

    

    

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 18



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: 1st December 2020 Information Items 
Subject 

 
Purpose  Key Issues  Witnesses  

 
 
 

   

    

    
 

 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 19



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

Social Services Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2020 – May 2021 

Meeting Date: Date to be Confirmed Information Items 
Subject 

 
Purpose  Key Issues  Witnesses  

 
 

   

    

    

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 20



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES 
APPENDIX 3 

  Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme Prioritisation 

          

 

 

                      

 

            

         

            

            

            

               

 

            

            

               

            

                 

            

            

               

                  

            

            

            

            

         

 

  

Is the issue of strategic 

importance? 

There is concern of poor 

performance or a significant 

budgetary issue has been 

identified 

Issue identified as corporate 

priority or identified as 

service or corporate risk 

 

Is the topic timely? Will 

scrutiny be able to make 

recommendations? 

Suitable for Scrutiny 

Forward Work 

Programme 

No 

No 

Suitable as Task and Finish 

group review 

Unsuitable for Scrutiny 

Forward Work 

Programme 

No 

Issue highlighted by an 

Auditor, Regulator or 

Inspector, which identified 

areas for improvement or 

concern. 

No 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Change to Legislation or 

Guidance 
No 

Evidence of public 

dissatisfaction (e.g. Public 

Satisfaction Survey)  
Yes 

 

No 

No Yes 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Appendix 2 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme 

 

  

 

       

Date Item 

 
Key Issue Author 

Cabinet 
Member 

          

30/09/2020 

Leaseholder 
Management 
Charges 

Received 

Shaun Couzens Cllr Phipps 

30/09/2020 

Covid recovery 
framework 

Received 
Christina Harrhy Cllr Marsden 

30/09/2020 

Economic 
Recovery 
Framework 

Received 

Rhian Kyte Cllr Morgan 

 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



 
 
 

SOCIAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
24TH SEPTEMBER 2020 

 
 
SUBJECT: ESTABLISHMENT OF AN ADDITIONAL RESIDENTIAL 

CHILDREN’S HOME WITHIN THE COUNTY BOROUGH 
 
REPORT BY:  CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Scrutiny Committee of the proposals to utilise Welsh Government 

Integrated Care Fund Capital monies to establish an additional residential children’s 
home within the County Borough in line with the strategic plan to increase in-house 
provision. 

 
1.2 To advise Scrutiny Committee of additional capital funding that has been allocated in 

principle through Service Specific Reserves. 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee is fully aware of the current development of Ty Isaf, a four 

bedded children’s home utilising ICF capital grant funding.  This is on schedule to be 
operational from the autumn, a Registered Manager has been appointed and the 
staff team is in the process of being recruited. Four children currently placed out of 
county have already been identified to transfer to the home when it becomes 
operational. 

 
2.2 Children’s Services applied for additional ICF Capital in 2019/20 to establish a third 

residential children’s home. This bid was successful and Caerphilly County Borough 
Council was awarded £750k.  Unfortunately, appropriate properties were unable to 
be identified and the monies were unable to be spent so Children’s Services 
requested that the capital allocation be carried forward into 2020/21 which was 
agreed by Welsh Government. 

 
2.3 This report serves to apprise Committee Members of the overall strategic plan for 

children’s residential care in Caerphilly and update Committee on developments to 
date. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 For Scrutiny Committee to note the strategic plan to increase in-house residential 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



care provision for children and young people. 
 
3.2 In line with the above, for Scrutiny Committee to endorse the proposed development 

of an additional residential children’s home within the County Borough. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To ensure Scrutiny Committee is fully aware of the proposed plan to expand in-house 

residential care capacity for children and young people. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
 Children’s Residential Care in Caerphilly: 
 
5.1 Scrutiny Committee is fully aware of Ty Ni, a long established four bedded children’s 

home in Penyrheol.   
 
5.2 Committee will also recall that in 2017, the Council was placed under huge financial 

strain due to the costs of an individual Court Ordered residential placement which 
was made because there was no alternative placement in the UK at the time.  In 
order to reduce these costs and improve the quality of care for that child, the Council 
endorsed a plan to staff a suitable property in order to provide care in-house.  The 
revenue costs of the in-house provision would represent a significant saving on the 
basis of this individual placement alone. 

 
5.3 A potential property, Hillcrest, was identified and recruitment of a Registered 

Manager and staff team commenced. Unfortunately, whilst being refurbished, the 
house suffered significant water damage that set the plans back by several months 
and meant it was no longer feasible.  An alternative placement was eventually 
identified for the specific child thereby reducing the immediate financial burden. 

 
5.4 However, as a result of the national residential placement shortage and the extreme 

costs associated with such placements, it was agreed that Children’s Services would 
continue with the plan to increase in-house residential provision and a bid for ICF 
capital grant funding was made to establish a second children’s home. This bid was 
successful and in 2018 £700k was awarded to the Council to purchase a property. 

 
5.5 Whilst trying to identify suitable properties, a second child with extremely challenging 

behaviours was unable to be placed anywhere in the UK and Children’s Services had 
to create an in-house bespoke placement.  Utilising a Council owned domestic 
property and the staff team that had been previously recruited for Hillcrest, a single 
placement home was established in Newbridge. Known as Ty Coed, the home is now 
fully registered with CIW and the intention is that it will be maintained after the 
specific child moves on in order to manage any future challenging children where 
placements cannot be identified or where children need to be placed on their own. 

 
5.6 Subsequently, the ICF grant purchased the property known as Ty Isaf in Llanbradach 

in March 2019 and plans for refurbishment to meet registration standards were drawn 
up. Unfortunately, these plans had to be put on hold because Children’s Services 
had to use the property to accommodate yet another single child in the absence of 
any alternative residential provision anywhere in the UK. This child was positively 
supported to move to a long term placement in January 2020.  Building work 

Page 26



commenced but had to be halted in March due to Covid-19. Work recommenced in 
June and is on line for completion in October.  

 
5.7 As part of the longer term strategy to increase residential provision in Caerphilly, a 

second bid was made for £750k ICF capital in 2019 and was successful.  Due to the 
lack of available properties in the County Borough, Welsh Government agreed that 
the capital allocation could be rolled forward into 2020/21. 

 
5.8 In summary, the final residential provision planned for children in Caerphilly is three 4 

four bedded children’s homes and one single bedded home thereby offering up to 13 
in-house placements. 

 
Update on developments: 

 
5.9 For obvious reasons, given the nature of the service provided and the potential 

opposition within communities to any such proposed development, a property needs 
to be detached within its own grounds and preferably with some level of isolation. To 
accommodate four children and meet registration requirements the property has to 
be large enough to offer a minimum of four bedrooms and two bathrooms in addition 
to spacious living accommodation and outside space. 

 
5.10 Whilst there is no doubt that Covid-19 impacted on the housing market, it continued 

to prove difficult to identify suitable properties within the Borough within the budget 
allocated. 

 
5.11 Committee will be aware that due to a positive financial outturn for Social Services, 

Service Specific Reserves have been able to be allocated to numerous 
developmental projects across the Directorate.  One of the Children’s Services 
requests was to add capital funding to the ICF grant in order to support expanding 
the search for suitable properties. 

 
5.12 As a result, Children’s Services has been allocated an additional £250k from 

Reserves to bring the overall budget up to £1 million. 
 
5.13  Searches are ongoing using Right Move and independent estate agencies together 

with building personal links with local agents in an attempt to identify potential 
properties in advance.  All possibilities are being explored but most are ruled out 
because of proximity to neighbours. Despite the increased investment available, to 
date an appropriate property has yet to be identified and secured. 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 The expansion of the residential estate is based on the assumption that the revenue 
funding is already allocated or has to be allocated for children currently placed or 
planned to be placed in residential care.  This revenue will be transferred to the in-
house provision as children are returned to Caerphilly from out of area placements or 
are placed in Caerphilly.   

 
7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1      Social Services & Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 
 
7.2 Regulation & Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016 

Page 27



 
7.3 Children’s Services Commissioning Strategy 
 
7.4 Well-Being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 
  
7.5 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.  The content of this report contributes towards Well 

Being Objective 6: Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-
being. 

 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 The content of this report contributes to the following Well Being Goals:  
 

 A resilient Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 
 

and is consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable 
development principle in the Act. 

 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  The Council’s full Equality Impact Assessment process does not need to be applied 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The revenue costs for the residential homes will be funded through diverting existing 

placement costs to in-house provision as children are returned to Caerphilly or are 
placed in Caerphilly. 

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no Personnel or HR implications arising from this report 
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 The views of consultees are incorporated into the report. 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Social Services & Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 
 
 
 
 
Author: Gareth Jenkins, Assistant Director – Children’s Services, 

jenkig2@caerphilly.gov.uk   
    
 
Consultees:      Dave Street, Corporate Director – Social Services & Housing, 

streed@caerphilly.gov.uk 

Page 28

mailto:jenkig2@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:streed@caerphilly.gov.uk


 Councillor Carl Cuss, Cabinet Member for Social Services 
 cusscj@caerphilly.gov.uk 

Jo Williams, Assistant Director – Adult Services, willij6@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer, couzes@caerphilly.gov.uk 

 Mike Jones, Interim Financial Services Manager, 
jonesmj@caerphilly.gov.uk 

 Shaun Watkins, Service Manager, Human Resources, 
watkis@caerphilly.gov.uk 

 Janine Edwards, Service Manager – Placement Provision & Support 
 edwarj6@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 Children’s Services Divisional Management Team 
  
 

Page 29

mailto:willij6@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:watkis@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:edwarj6@caerphilly.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30


	Agenda
	3 Social Services Scrutiny Committee held on the 4th February 2020.
	5 Social Services  Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.
	App1 Social Services Scrutiny Committee  FWP Reports 2020-21
	App1 Social Services FWP 2020-21 Information Items
	Appendix 3 - FWP - Prioritisation
	Appendix 2 - FWP

	7 Establishment of an additional Residential Children's Home within the County Borough.

